CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - JUNE 7, 2016

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on June 7, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the Council
Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Gerald Bright, Chairman
Ron Taylor, Vice Chair
Janet DePuy, Commissioner
Bill Ferrell, Commissioner
Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner
Tom Maxwell, Commissioner
Ken Southard, Alternate
Stephen Springs, Alternate

MEMBER ABSENT: Randy Roland, Commissioner
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director — Dev. Svcs. — Planning
Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner

Mohamed Bireima, Planner
Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding
staff reports, agenda items and rezoning initiatives. No action was taken.

MINUTES
1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of May 17, 2016.

Motion: Commissioner Frederick made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second by
Commissioner Maxwell. Motion approved 7-0.

CONSENT AGENDA
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission and
will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these items
unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate
consideration.

2. Site & Landscape Plans — Estates of Richardson Apartments: A request for approval of site
and landscape plans for the addition of a 4,799-square foot clubhouse for an existing apartment
community. The 20.01-acre site is located at 955 W. President George Bush Highway.

Motion: Commissioner Ferrell made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented;
second by Vice Chair Taylor. Motion approved 7-0.

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-06-07 Minutes.doc



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

June 7, 2016

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Note: Although the Public Hearing Items are listed in their correct numerical order, Chairman Bright
announced that Item 6 would be heard before Items 4 and 5.

3. Zoning File 16-12 — Play Date Co.: Consider and take necessary action on a request for approval
of a Special Permit for a commercial amusement center (indoor children’s play space) to be located
at 2701 Custer Parkway at the northwest corner of Custer Parkway and Lookout Drive. The
property is currently zoned PD Planned Development.

Mr. Shacklett advised the requested Special Permit was for an indoor children’s play space at the
Two Creeks Shopping Center with the business geared towards children ages 1 to 7 years old. He
added that the play time would encourage imaginative and creative play and the parents would be
required to remain with their children at the facility.

In addition, parking studies presented by the applicant to coincide with their peek operating hours,
which would be mid-morning to lunch time and 1:00 p.m. and 4:00 p.m. with extended hours to
7:00 p.m. on Wednesdays, found that those using the play space would be gone before the majority
of customers came to the center in the evenings to patronize the many restaurants.

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting staff had received one letter in opposition
because of concerns over traffic in and around the shopping center.

With no questions for staff, Chairman Bright opened the public hearing.

Mr. Ray Morgan, Play Date Co., 2700 Custer Parkway, Richardson, Texas, said the only thing he
could add to staff’s presentation was the business concept was not the traditional bounce house or
jungle gym and similar businesses had opened in the cities of Frisco, McKinney and Plano. He
added they would not be a day care center and parents would have to remain on site with their
children at all times.

Commissioner DePuy asked if reservations were required and what would be the process for
private parties.

Mr. Morgan replied that reservations were not required and anyone could drop-in, but when a
private party was using the facility on the weekend the site would be closed to other clients.

Chairman Bright asked if the customers would have to bring their own supplies and food for parties
and wanted to know if the business would be subject to any state regulations.

Mr. Morgan said that since the parents must remain on site, the business was not regulated by any
state regulations or requirements, and patrons would be offered a variety of packages for parties.

Commissioner Frederick asked how costs would be assessed for customers and Mr. Morgan said
the cost would be per child.

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-05-17 CPCMinutes.doc 2



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

June 7, 2016

Commissioner Ferrell asked if the employees would need any type of special training or licenses.

Mr. Morgan said he would require CPR/First Aid certifications, and would do full background
checks, but no special licensing was required.

Mr. Clint Schroff, 6666 Whitemarsh Valley Walk, Austin, Texas, stated he represented the
shopping center owners and although they had been approached by other restaurants wanting to
locate in the center, they owners decided to wait for another type of tenant that would not impact
the traffic or parking in the center. He added that Play Date would fit in well with some of the
other tenants such as Kumon Learning Center and Sway.

With no further comments in favor, Chairman Bright called for those in opposition.

Ms. Nadine Cole Flowers, 2624 Custer Parkway, Apartment A, Richardson, Texas, stated she had
concerns about bringing a commercial amusement center to the shopping center because of traffic
and the proximity of a registered sex offender.

Ms. Lisa Huisenga, 535 W. Lookout Drive, #31, Richardson, Texas, a local resident and a
representative of the Knolls on Canyon Creek Condominium Association was also concerned about
the amount of traffic in the area as well as restaurants serving alcohol in close proximity to a
children’s play space.

Mr. Morgan offered rebuttal comments stating their hours of operation would not conflict with the
peak traffic hours for the other tenants (restaurants) of the center, and as far of the registered sex
offender, he said he would have to look into and research the matter.

Vice Chair Taylor asked if a parent was called away during a play session would they be required
to take their child with them and Mr. Morgan said the parent could not leave the premises without

taking the child with them.

No other comments in favor or opposed were received and Chairman Bright closed the public
hearing.

Commissioner Springs said he thought the proposed business would be a good fit for the shopping
center.

Chairman Bright asked if a restaurant could occupy the vacant space in question and how that type
of business would impact traffic.

Mr. Shacklett replied a restaurant could locate in any of the spaces at the shopping center and draw
more use then the proposed play center.

Commissioner Springs said there were a lot of businesses that could open in the center per the
existing zoning that would cause bigger traffic and parking problems than the proposed business.

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-05-17 CPCMinutes.doc 3



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

June 7, 2016

Regarding the proximity of the registered sex offender, Commissioner Frederick said it was
naturally a concern but it would not prevent her from being in favor of the item.

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 16-12 as
presented; second by Commissioner Maxwell. Motion approved 7-0.

4. Zoning File 16-13 — Residences on Duck Creek Trail West: Consider and take necessary action
on a request for approval of a change in zoning from R-1800-M Residential to PD Planned
Development to accommodate the development of a maximum 43-unit residential community,
including apartments and/or townhomes, to be located on the western portion of a 4.7acre tract
(approximately 2.7-acres) at 700 N. Plano Road, east side of Plano Road approximately 1,200 feet
south of Arapaho Road.

Chairman Bright advised that staff would brief the Commission on Item 4 before opening the
public hearing to receive comments, then would go to the briefing, open hearing and testimony for
Item 5 before closing both public hearings and taking separate votes on each item.

Mr. Shacklett briefly reviewed the applicant’s request to rezone the western portion of the property
in question to accommodate the development of 27 condominiums in three, four-story buildings
along the northern property line and four, three-story buildings with 16 townhomes platted on
individual lots just south of the condominiums. He reminded the Commission that although the
applicant was requesting the City to dictate ownership of the residential units allowing only senior
citizen residents, the City was not allowed to do so.

Mr. Shacklett compared the previous submittal versus the current submittal based on the number of
buildings, size of buildings, number of units, building heights, amenities, parking, window design
for windows facing single-family residential properties to the south, and access to and from the
community.

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting that staff had received 27 letters in support and
37 letters in opposition.

Commissioner Frederick asked where the two amenity centers would be located in the proposed
plan.

Mr. Shacklett replied that amenity area two (AA2), which must be built first, would be located in
the southeast corner of the development and amenity area one (AA1l) would be built between
townhomes buildings E and F.

Commissioner Maxwell acknowledged that the applicant was proposing AA2 would have to be in
place before a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) could be issued, but wanted to know what assurances
were in place for AAL.

Mr. Shacklett said there was currently nothing listed in the proposal stating when AA1 would need
to be constructed, but a condition could be added to tie AA1 to the construction of buildings E and
F.

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-05-17 CPCMinutes.doc 4



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

June 7, 2016

Commissioner Ferrell asked about the building material percentages listed in the staff report and
how that compared to standard percentages.

Mr. Shacklett replied the standard was usually 75%, but in many new apartment developments
stucco was treated as a masonry product.

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Bright opened the public hearing.

Mr. Travis Thompson, Twin Rivers Capital Partners, 1400 Preston Road, Suite 400, Dallas, Texas,
thanked the Commission and the neighbors for their feedback, which he said was used to create the
current plan. He added that the majority of his presentation would cover areas of concern
including height, value impact on surrounding homes and privacy issues.

Mr. Thompson reviewed the proposed changes for the project including the number of buildings,
reduction in the height of buildings, number of units, density, distance from surrounding single-
family homes, elevations, and increased accessibility to and from Plano Road. He also presented
renderings showing the proposed changes as well as possible views from the surrounding homes.

Commissioner Southard asked the applicant to elaborate on the construction phases and the
timeframe.

Mr. Thompson replied that timing wise, the townhomes would be built before the condominiums,
and the phasing would depend on people moving into the community as it was being built.

Commissioner DePuy acknowledged that the applicant wanted to market the property to buyers
over 55 years of age, but wanted to know how a potential buyer with a family would be addressed.

Mr. Thompson said that a potential buyer with children could not be prevented from coming into
the community, but through the covenants of both the condominiums and the townhomes the
number of individuals living in a unit could be controlled.

Commissioner DePuy asked what the price point for the townhomes would be.

Mr. Thompson replied that the townhomes would be between the high $200,000 to low $300,000
and the condominiums, which would be a higher end product, would be 10-15% higher.

Chairman Bright called for any additional comments in favor and noted the Commission had
received 10 speaker cards in favor.

The following individuals spoke in favor of the proposed project basing their approval on a
perceived positive impact to property values; ability to keep long time homeowners in the area
when they downsize; necessary addition to housing supply in the city; and confidence in the
developer based on past projects.

Mr. Jim Owens, 1401 Creekside Drive, Richardson, Texas

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-05-17 CPCMinutes.doc 5



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

June 7, 2016

Mr. Lon Thomas, 1112 Horizon Trail, Richardson, Texas

Ms. Sheila Green, 700 N. Plano Road, Richardson, Texas

Mr. Kenneth Hollands, 1329 Alto Drive, Richardson, Texas
Ms. Sandra Bryant, 909 Willow Crest Drive, Richardson, Texas

Chairman Bright stated the Commission had received 28 cards in opposition. Those who spoke
based their concerns on a perceived negative impact on property values; erosion; increased density;
failure to meet the goal of senior housing without stairs; building heights in close proximity to
single-family homes — four stories versus three stories; lack of privacy for surrounding single-
family homes; turning townhomes into rental units; inadequate parking; and lack of options for use
of the land.

Mr. Anthony Rice, 1505 Creekside Drive, Richardson, Texas
Mr. Aaron Hollis, 400 Fireside Drive, Richardson, Texas

Ms. Carmen Herndon, 1502 Creekside Drive, Richardson, Texas
Ms. Diana Clawson, 800 Westminster, Richardson, Texas

Ms. Sharon Swink, 1513 Creekside Drive, Richardson, Texas
Ms. Anna Balderas, 801 Willow Crest Drive, Richardson, Texas
Mr. Bill Denton, 708 Allison Drive, Richardson, Texas

Mr. Bill Geyer, 502 Fireside Drive, Richardson, Texas

Ms. Hallie Garcia, 1603 Auburn Drive, Richardson, Texas

Chairman Bright called for comments in rebuttal.

Mr. Thompson said he thought there was a misconception regarding the number of stories versus
the actual height of a building and explained that under the current zoning a three story patio or
townhome that was 150 feet from single family homes could be up to 55 feet in height, which
would be six feet taller than what was being proposed. He added that making the condominiums
four stories was a matter of practicality to allow first floor gated parking for the units.

Regarding incorporating townhomes that have stairs, Mr. Thompson said the townhomes with a
more residential appearance would provide a good transition from the neighboring single-family
homes to the condominiums on the northern edge of the property.

Mr. Thompson said he did not understand how an increase of 10 units would negatively impact the
residents of Duck Creek neighborhood because there would be no interaction between the two sites
given the separation by the Oncor right-of-way, the creek and the fact that the additional driveway
would prevent any problems with U-turns.

Mr. Thompson used the Twin Rivers Retirement complex as an example of low or negative impact
on the surrounding neighborhood and pointed out that although Twin Rivers was three stories and
47 feet in height, the proposed four-story condominiums would be 49 feet in height; only two feet
taller.

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-05-17 CPCMinutes.doc 6



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

June 7, 2016

Mr. Thompson concluded his comments by stating he felt the development would fill a need in the
city and they had done everything they could possibly do to address the concerns of the Duck
Creek neighborhood.

Public hearing closed (see comment under Item 5).

Commissioner Springs said he thought the project had greatly improved since the initial submittal
in February, and could sympathize with both sides, but felt the proposed plan filled a need and
would be good for the City.

Commissioner DePuy stated she thought the proposed plan would be a good transition between the
single-family homes and any future retail to the north.

Commissioner Frederick said she felt the citizens needed to be progressive thinkers and concurred
with Ms. DePuy that the proposed project was a good use of the land.

Commissioner Maxwell thanked the applicant and the residents for their input and stated he felt the
few negative aspects of the submittal outweighed the good it would do for the city and had decided
to vote against the item.

Vice Chair Taylor thought the proposed project would approve the overall living quality in the city
and would be voting in favor.

Commissioner DePuy asked if the issue of a brick wall along Plano Road needed to be discussed
prior to making a motion.

Chairman Bright said he did not have any problems about requiring or not requiring a brick wall.
Commissioner Maxwell said he wanted to discuss the timing of the construction of AA1.

Mr. Shacklett replied that AA1 would be located between buildings E and F and was not required
as part of the phasing; however, AA2, which was located in the southeast corner of the property,
was part of Phase One and had to be completed before a CO could be issued. He added the area
was part of the development plan so it would be required, but suggested the Commission could ask
the applicant.

Mr. Thompson said that he thought a solution would be to state that before a CO could be issued
for Buildings E and F, AA1 would have to be completed.

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 16-13 with
an added condition that Amenity Area 1 be constructed prior to the issuance of a
Certificate of Occupancy for Buildings E and F; second by Vice Chair Taylor. Motion
approved 6-1 with Commissioner Maxwell opposed.

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-05-17 CPCMinutes.doc 7



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

June 7, 2016

5. Zoning File 16-14 — Residences on Duck Creek Trail East: Consider and take necessary action
on a request for approval of a change in zoning from R-1800-M Residential to PD Planned
Development for the R-1800-M Residential District to accommodate a lot without frontage to be
located on the eastern portion of a 4.7acre tract (approximately 2.0-acres) at 700 N. Plano Road,
east side of Plano Road approximately 1,200 feet south of Arapaho Road.

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting to rezone the eastern portion of the property at
700 N. Plano Road to accommodate a lot without frontage that would be limited to an open space
lot only. He added that the property was inaccessible due to the flood plain and, if the request was
approved as presented, the R-1800-M rights would be removed and the lot would be platted
separately from the western lot.

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by stating staff had received four letters in support and
letters in opposition were from the same individuals opposed to Zoning File 16-13.

Commissioner Springs asked if a flood plain map was available for the property.

Mr. Shacklett replied the flood plain and map were currently under review with the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and regardless of what zoning changes were approved,
development would not be allowed within the 100 year flood plain area.

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Bright opened the public hearing.

Mr. Travis Thompson, Twin Rivers Capital Partners, 1400 Preston Road, Suite 400, Dallas, Texas,
said that as relayed in previous discussions, they anticipated donating the property to the City’s
Parks Department. He added the Parks Department thought the donation was a good idea because
they could extend the trail north to Plano Road, but they could not guarantee the acceptance would
be right away.

Mr. Thompson said that if the if the property was not divided it could cause problems with public
access on a piece of privately owned property due to liability issues.

Chairman Bright called for any comments in favor or opposed.

Mr. Anthony Rice, 1505 Creekside Drive, Richardson, Texas, said he was in opposition and felt the
zoning request was being proposed only as a means of splitting the zoning notification area and
prevented the neighborhood from reaching the 20% in opposition that would require six out of
seven affirmative votes when the item goes before the City Council. He also mentioned again his
opposition to Zoning File 16-13.

Ms. Diana Clawson, 800 Westminster, Richardson, Texas, asked if the applicant had planned any
improvements for the western lot.

No further comments were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Bright called for rebuttal
comments.

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-05-17 CPCMinutes.doc 8



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

June 7, 2016

Mr. Thompson addressed concerns about maintenance of the eastern property by stating it would
be to their advantage to keep it maintained as well as trying to donate it to the Parks Department so
the property could be considered a positive community feature for the western lot. In addition, He
noted that in their original application they would have been required to build the trail, but that
requirement had been removed in the current proposal based on the uncertainty of whether the
Parks Department would accept the property.

Mr. Shacklett added if the property was accepted by the Parks Department it would be maintained
by the City and if it was not, it would be maintained by the property owner.

Commissioner Frederick asked if the applicant had had any conversations with the City regarding
drainage improvements that may be needed on the eastern lot.

Mr. Thompson replied they had touched on the subject with the Parks Department, but did have in
depth discussions with their in-house civil engineer. He acknowledged there were some problems
with erosions and it would be to their advantage to maintain the property.

Commissioner Springs asked if the applicant was proposing to separate the property as an attempt
to give them an advantage if and when the application went to the City Council.

Mr. Thompson said they had made representations from the beginning to donate the eastern lot so
if that affected the 200-foot radius it was not they intent. He also noted that three of the closest

homes to the development had expressed their approval for the development.

With no further questions or comments in favor or opposed, Chairman Bright closed the public
hearings for Zoning Files 16-13 and 16-14.

Commissioner Maxwell asked if there was any reason the owner could not separate the parcel at a
future date if the item was approved.

Mr. Shacklett said a property owner could come in at any time to request a change.

Chairman Bright asked if the item was approved, could the applicant come back at a later date and
dedicate the eastern portion of the land.

Mr. Shacklett replied the applicant would have to subdivide the property and replat the eastern
portion; however, under the City’s ordinances the eastern portion would not have street frontage so
a variance would have to be sought. He added there needed to be some way to subdivide the
property without violating the City’s ordinances and the proposed PD would be a way to do that.

Vice Chair Taylor summarized that the proposed PD would simplify the process going forward and
asked if that was a correct statement.

Mr. Shacklett confirmed that was correct.

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-05-17 CPCMinutes.doc 9



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

June 7, 2016

Commissioner Springs said he thought the item reminded him of a cart and a horse trying to go
through a gate at the same time and felt that Zoning File 16-13 should be approved first before
thinking about separating the eastern lot.

Commissioner DePuy said she felt if the land was not separated as proposed, and the financing was
based on the entire tract of land, then to separate the eastern lot at a later date could affect the entire
piece of property. She thought it made sense to separate the property now instead of later.

Commissioner Maxwell said he still did not see why the current zoning case could not be brought
back before the Commission if and when the previous case was approved.

Mr. Shacklett replied that a zoning case could be brought to the Commission at any time, but he
felt the applicant’s intent was to request the zoning for the 43 units on the western lot and limit the
zoning on the eastern lot to make clear their overall intent was for the entire 4.7 acres.

Motion: Commissioner Ferrell made a motion to recommend approval as presented; second by
Commissioner DePuy. Motion approved 5-2 with Commissioners Maxwell and Springs
opposed.

6. Zoning File 16-15 — Metro Vapors: Consider and take necessary action on a request for approval
of a Special Permit for an electronic-cigarette establishment to be located at 3601 N. Jupiter Road
at the southwest corner of Jupiter Road and President George Bush Highway. The property is
currently zoned LR-M(2) Local Retail.

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting a Special Permit for an electronic cigarette store
in a 10,000 square foot retail center with gasoline sales located at the southwest corner of Jupiter
Road and President George Bush Turnpike (PGBT). He added the proposed business would be
located in a 1,500 square space along the north side of the building with frontage facing PGBT.

Mr. Shacklett noted that in 2013 electronic cigarettes were defined in the Comprehensive Zoning
Ordinance (CZO) as “Electronic-cigarette establishment means a business establishment that is
dedicated primarily to the sale and/or on premise use of electronic-cigarettes” and as such was
allowed in Local Retail and Commercial zoning districts and moved into the Special Permit
section.

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by stating staff had not received any correspondence on
the case and the store would be a retail establishment only and no lounge area would be provided.

With no questions for staff, Chairman Bright opened the public hearing.

Mr. Brandon Parrish, 204 San Jacinto Drive, Lavon, Texas 75160, said they currently have seven
(7) establishments in the DFW area and was in business to create a place for smokers to have a
healthy alternative to traditional cigarettes. In addition, all their stores were already in compliance
with future Federal Drug Administration regulations going into effect in August 2016, and the
other tenants in the strip center were in favor of the proposed business including the 7-Eleven who
sells similar products.

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-05-17 CPCMinutes.doc 10



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

June 7, 2016

Vice Chair Taylor asked for information on the hours of operation and Mr. Parrish replied the
hours would be 11:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, 11:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. on
Saturday and 12:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. on Sundays.

No further comments in favor or opposed were received and Chairman Bright closed the public
hearing.

Motion: Vice Chair Taylor made a motion to recommend approval of Item 6 as presented;
second by Commissioner Southard. Motion approved 6-1 with Commissioner Maxwell
opposed.

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Bright adjourned the regular business
meeting at 10:04 p.m.

Gerald Bright, Chairman
City Plan Commission

Ds:CPC/2016/2016-05-17 CPCMinutes.doc 11





